@ ST. LOUIS LAMBERT
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT.

THIRD ADDENDUM TO THE RFP FOR
AIRPORT LANDSIDE TRAFFIC CONRTOL SERVICES
AT ST. LOUIS LAMBERT INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT®

March 17, 2022

Dear Prospective Proposers:

Attached is the Second Addendum to the Request for Proposals for Airport Landside Traffic
Control Services at St. Louis Lambert International Airport dated January 21, 2022. This Third
Addendum is being issued in order to do the following:

1. Delete and replace Section 4.S with the new Section 4.S below:

S. All individuals assigned to this Airport Traffic Control Services agreement must
meet or satisfy the following minimum requirements:

1. Be properly licensed as a Watchman or Security Officer under guidelines set
forth by St. Louis County and carry such license at all times while providing
service under the Agreement;

. Have basic written and oral skills in English;
3. Have a high school diploma or equivalent;
4. Be 19 years of age or older;
5. Be a permanent resident or citizen of the U.S.;
6. Submit to a background check, including a fingerprint-based criminal history record

check (CHRC) and a security threat assessment (STA) as required by 49 CFR 1542.
This background check will be conducted by the Airport Badging Office at the
Consultant’s expense. No Traffic Control Officer, Lead Traffic Control Officer,
Traffic Control Supervisor, or Branch Manager will be issued an airport-issued
identification (ID) badge until the background check has been completed to the
satisfaction of the Airport Representative. Badge holders will be enrolled in the FBI
RapBack Program, a program that perpetually vets badge holders for arrests that
may result in airport ID revocation.
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2. Delete and replace Section 2 Definitions “Holiday” with “Holiday” below

“Holiday”  This means New Year’s Day, Memorial, Independence Day, Labor Day,
Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day.

3. Answer bidders Questions
4. Attach current Security Guard Services Agreement

5. Extend the Bid Due Date. Written or Electronic Bids will be received up until 2:00 P.M. Local
Time, April 13, 2022

The City of St. Louis Airport Authority (“Authority”) reserves the right to reject any and all
proposals, to advertise for new proposals, to cancel this RFP, and/or proceed to have the services
performed otherwise. The submission of a proposal by a Proposer shall not in any way commit the
City of St. Louis or the Authority to enter into an Agreement with that Proposer or any other
Proposer.

All other terms, conditions, and provisions of the RFP not inconsistent with this Third Addendum
are unchanged and remain in full force and effect.

Sincerely,
A ’

Briana Bryant
Contract Compliance Officer
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Airport Landside Traffic Control Services

Questions

Given the focus on customer service and traffic control, must proposers be licensed as security
providers, either by the City, County or State?

Yes, See 4.0 Scope of Work, Letter S on The Third Addendum

If this service is presently outsourced, is the current provider licensed as a security provider?

Yes

Is the 15% M/WBE incentive credit available to proposers who are not M/WBE certified but who
nevertheless meet the M/WBE participation goals through subcontracting? Or, is the 15% credit
available only to proposers who are themselves certified as M/WBE?

Per Ordinance 70767, an M/WBE M/WBE incentive credits shall be applied to the evaluation of
professional service prime contracts, but may not include state or federally-funded projects which have
requirements that preempt the local M/WBE Program. A fifteen percent (15%) incentive credit as part of
the total points evaluated on professional service prime contracts shall be applied to African American,
Asian American, Native American, Hispanic American, and Women-owned Business Enterprises. The
incentive credit shall be applied during the evaluation process. In order to qualify for the incentive
credit, the M/WBE prime contractor must include a copy of the current M/WBE certification approval
letter issued by the M/WBE Program. The solicitation shall describe the incentive credit as applied to
eligible M/WBE prime contractors. In order to qualify for the incentive credit, the M/WBE prime
contractor must include in its proposal or statement of qualifications a copy of the M/WBE certification
approval letter issued by the M/WBE Program.

Based on the definition of the “Expiration Date” on Page 10, the term is 3 years & 2 months, June 01,
2022 to August 31, 2025. However, in Section 9 on Page 24, the term is 3 years, expiring May 31, 2025.
Which is correct?

The expiration date is May 31, 2025

Section 4.0 (page 13) — What does the implementation of heat relief consist of under the terms of the
Agreement and is there any required coordination between the Consultant/Contractor and Airport
Representative when the heat relief thresholds outlined within this section of the RFP are met.

Heat / Cold relief consists of providing frequent enough breaks for employees on post to prevent unsafe
exposure hazards, while backfilling those posts with other employees to maintain post coverage.
Coordination consists of advising the Airport Representative it is implemented.
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With reference to Item J (page 14), since the make, model, markings and lighting for the two vehicles
which contractor must provide require the Airport’s approval, would the Airport provide proposers its
minimum specs for such vehicles prior to the proposal due date, so that proposers may budget
accordingly?

NO, the Airport will not provide specs, but reserves the right to approve / reject vehicles.

Is there any maximum mileage or age limit on the two service vehicles?

No

RFP Section 6.0 (page 21) — States that all fees submitted by the Proposer will be subject to negotiation.
Please confirm that once a proposer is selected, the fees will be deemed accepted by the Airport and
not negotiated other than to account for changed circumstances.

No, all fees are subject to negotiation.

RFP Section 20 (page 40) — Must all subcontractors meet the minimum wage and benefits set forth in
the RFP?

Yes

Section 22 of the RFP requires both a Performance Bond and Payment Bond; since there is no payment
due from contractor to the City under this contract, is a payment bond necessary and would the City
waive this requirement?

The payment bond does not guarantee payment to the City. Rather it ensures payment to all
subcontractors and suppliers. The payment bond is necessary and the City will not waive the
requirement.

Will office space within the Airport premises be provided to contractor? If so, will the space be rent
free, and who will be responsible to provide office furniture and office equipment?

Yes, space is rent free. Consultant to provide furniture and office equipment.

Who will be responsible for maintenance (i.e. janitorial services, repairs, etc.) of the required office
space provided by the Airport?

Consultant will be responsible for maintenance of the office space.
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Will the list of attendees for the Pre-Proposal Meeting be shared with all attendees? If not, how should
we proceed to request a copy of the attendee listing?

Yes, a list of attendees is attached to the First Addendum

Information provided during the pre-proposal conference seemed to differ slightly from the minimum
staffing requirements. To ensure an “apples to apples” comparison and accurate guidance, please
provide by position and terminal the minimum staffing levels required.

Anticipated staffing is listed in Appendix A

May we obtain a copy of the current provider’s contract/agreement for these services (Airport Landside
Traffic Control Services)?

This is a new service. There is no current Airport Landside Traffic Control Services Agreement.

Can you please confirm that the MBE and WBE Participation goals fall under the Professional Services
mean that the targets for this RFP are MBE at 25% and WBE at 5%7?

City of St. Louis Minority and Women’s Business Enterprise Program Certification and Compliance Rules
dated August 2021, Part Il: Compliance, Letter C, Professional Services advise the goals are 25% MBE and
5% WBE participation.

What are the current M/WBE participation goals for the Airport Traffic Control Services detail or other
security programs at STL

There is no current Airport Landside Traffic Control Services Agreement.

The RFP states that the M/WBE prime proposer must include in its proposal or statement of
qualifications proof of certification. Does STL require the same documentation in the case of M/WBE
firms serving as a subcontractor?

No. Ordinance 70767 does not require subconsultants to submit proof of certification.

STL mentions that M/WBE subcontractors may request mobilization payments not to exceed 5% of their
contract from the Prime Consultant to mobilize payments to start their contracted work. However, that
occurs when the mobilization payments are approved as a contract line item for the Prime Consultant.
What is the process for gaining this approval?

No. Ordinance 70767 does not require subconsultants to submit proof of certification.
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Under Item C in the Good Faith Efforts section, the RFP states that the Consultant shall provide “Written
notification to disadvantaged economic development assistance agencies and organizations which
provide assistance in recruitment and placement of M/WBEs, of the type of work, supplies, or services
being considered for M/WBEs on this contract.” Can STL please provide a list, with contact information,
for agencies which could fulfill this requirement?

African American Business and Contractors Association (AABCA)

Mid-States Minority Supplier Development Council, 314.278.5616

Missouri Procurement and Technical Assistance Centers-St. Louis, 314.400.7378
MOKAN, 314.454.9675

Saint Louis Minority Business Council, 314.241.1143

Under Item | in the Good Faith Efforts section, the RFP states that the Consultant shall purchase an
“Advertisement, in general circulation media, trade association publications, disadvantaged-focused
media, of interest in utilizing M/WBEs and area of interest.” Can STL please provide a list, with contact
information, of organizations or publications whose expertise would enable prospective Consultants to
meet this obligation?

St. Louis American

St. Louis Post Dispatch

Suburban Journals of Greater St. Louis

St. Louis Argus

St. Louis Development Corporation (SLDC) On-line Plan Room
MOKAN On-line Plan Room

Under Item J in the Good Faith Efforts section, the RFP requires “efforts to effectively use the services
of available disadvantaged community organizations; disadvantaged contractor’s groups; local, state and
federal disadvantaged business assistance offices; and other organizations that provide assistance in
recruitment and placement of M/WBEs.” Could STL please provide a list, with contact information, for
organizations which assist in connecting with M/WBE firms?

African American Business and Contractors Association (AABCA)

Mid-States Minority Supplier Development Council, 314.278.5616

Missouri Procurement and Technical Assistance Centers-St. Louis, 314.400.7378
MOKAN, 314.454.9675

Saint Louis Minority Business Council, 314.241.1143

In determining the “Value Applicable to the Goal” for the M/WBE Enterprise Utilization, do prime
Consultants fall under the Supplier or Regular Dealer designation? If so, only 60% of their agreement
with M/WBEs will count towards the participation goal?

Prime consultants are not classified as a supplier and/or regular dealer. If you are receiving a service
from a currently certified MBE or WBE the service they are providing will count at 100% as long as the
MBE or WBE is currently performing work they are currently certified to perform work in.
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Do the forms listed on https://flystl/diversitycompliance.com/ need to be completed after the contract
award has been made or should those forms be submitted along with our proposals?

The Sub-consultant and Minority/Women Business Enterprise (M/WBE) Preliminary Utilization Plan;
fully executed Notice of Intent (NOI) to Perform As a Sub-consultant; Contractor’s Good Faith Effort
Report-Part | and Contractor’s Good Faith Effort Report-Part Il are to be submitted along with your
proposal.

The Sub-consultant and Minority/Women Business Enterprise (M/WBE) Final Utilization Plan is to be
completed after selected proposer has been notified they have been selected.

On the Final Utilization Plan, M/WBE firms are identified as Tier 1 or Tier 2. Can you please explain what
the difference is between Tier 1 or Tier 2 and how the Consultant should determine which designation
applies to their prospective subcontractors?

If a sub-consultant (15" Tier) is bringing another consultant to the project you must list that sub-sub-
consultant. If the sub-sub consultant will have an agreement directly with the 1% tier sub-consultant
they will be identified as the 2'° tier.

Firms on the City of St. Louis M/WBE Directory are listed under an NAICS code associated with their
specialty. Is there a specific NAICS code which prospective M/WBE subcontractors must fulfill to meet
STL’s qualification standards, for example, any of the following designations?

561612 — Security Guards & Patrol Services
561990 — Flagging (i.e., traffic control) Services

The City has not identified specific NAICS codes that M/WBE subcontractors must fulfill to meet the
City’s qualification standards. However, either of the identified NAICS codes would meet the City’s
qualification standards.

During the Pre-Proposal Conference call, the BDD representative discussed the process for submitting
pricing for M/WBE firms and ensuring that the quoted amount is proposed. Prime
contractors/consultants take on additional costs for management, compliance, equipment, and matters
related to oversight of the overall contract and the M/WBE partner; costs which the M/WBE does not
incur. As such, many entities understand that the prime contractor/consultant places a slight mark-up
on the rate which the M/WBE firm proposed to them. This mark-up enables the prime contractor to
recoup the costs of these expenses. Is the City accepting of this practice? If not, how should the prime
integrate these additional costs which are incurred in meeting the City’s M/WBE goals?

Only funds actual paid to MBE or WBE firms are counted toward MBE and WBE participation goals. Any
funds paid to non-MBE or non-WBE firms are not counted toward goal attainment.

In both the RFP and Pre-Proposal meeting, the City lists “Project Goals for Construction and Goods &
Services as: Are these figures applicable to this RFP?
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The goals applicable on this RFP are 25% MBE and 5% WBE.

In researching prospective subcontractor partners in the directory of certified firms on the City’s BDD
website, the ethnicity for organizations in Security Guard & Patrol Services and Flagging (i.e., traffic
control) services, are either African American or Caucasian. None of the firms identify themselves as
Hispanic, Asian, or Native American. Can you please explain how prime consultants can meet the goals
defined in the table above, if applicable to this RFP, if none of the certified firms fall within that ethnicity
and eligible group?

The eligible groups-African American (21%), Hispanic American (2%), Asian American (.05%), Native
American (.05%) and Women (11%) is applicable on solicitation for bids (SFBs) for construction and
various other goods and services.

Is Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Day recognize as an STL Holiday?

Holidays recognized for this Agreemenf are New Year’s Day, Memorial, Independence Day, Labor Day,
Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day.

Is the Traffic Control staff paid at time and a half their normal wage on Holidays?

Staff who work on the designate Holidays will received a Holiday Rate, which equals one and a half
straight time wages.

Within the definitions for the Traffic Control Supervisor, exercising judgment and discretion in dealing
with violations encountered is listed. Does that mean that citations for violations are only issued by the
Supervisor, not the Traffic Control Officers?

Citations to public must be written by Airport Police.

Are officers provided any tools for issuing tickets and documenting violations? Cell phones, mobile ticket
issuing machines, etc.?

No. Officers will not be issuing tickets. Tickets will be issued by the St. Louis Airport Police Department
when necessary.

How does the staffing schedule change when “Heat/Cold Relief” is enacted? Are additional officers
required to stand post during these weather conditions?

Yes, at the expense of the Consultant.

Can you please clarify whether the selected Consultant will be required to provide the following

equipment?
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e Handheld metal detectors?

A. No.

e Warning Flags?

A. No.

* Mirrors to inspect vehicle undercarriages?
A. Yes, in the event of a heightened security alert
e Radios?

A. No

e Cell Phones?

A. No

e Laptop Computers?

A. No

e Hand wands, to direct traffic?

A. ,Yes, and whistles.

Will the costs for these additional pieces of equipment, and all equipment which the Consultant is
responsible for providing, be reimbursed by STL or should they be included within our Bill Rate?

Bill Rate

How many electronic guard monitoring devices are currently supplied to the STL Traffic Control staff in
documenting and tracking the officers’ performance and ensuring compliance against regulatory
requirements?

None by the Airport.

How is the information gathered on electronic guard monitoring devices delivered to STL? Email? A

N/A

What furniture will the contactor need to provide in constructing an office?

Contractor decision.

The RFP states that the Consultant must provide 2 vehicles for STL's Airport Traffic Control program.
What is the current make, and model of the vehicles used by the incumbent Airport Traffic Control
Services provider?

Late model Toyota Rav-4 SUV

What are the costs for the following items related to each vehicle which the Consultant must provide?

a. License plates and tags per vehicle
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b. Any additional vehicle stickers
¢. Any additional airport access permits

No additional airport costs.

Should the following expenses for vehicles be direct billed as incurred or integrated into our proposed
pricing?

a. Fuel

b. Maintenance

¢. Insurance

d. Vehicle Stickers

e. Airport Access Permits

They should be billed in the Bill Rate

How many miles does the typical security vehicle accrue each month in addressing the security/traffic
control needs of STL?

Unknown.

Should prospective vendors submit their uniform designs as part of the RFP process, or will those be
reviewed for approval once a contract has been awarded?

Approval once contractor selected.

How do the “Retroflective Safety Vests” differ from those vests worn at other STL security posts?

Minimally. Rear of safety vests must be clearly marked, “TRAFFIC CONTROL”.

Are Traffic Control Officers and Supervisors authorized to wear shorts in the summer, particularly
during the “Heat Relief” periods?

No.

Under Section N, Items 6 — 10, STL identifies several different training programs which are required of
the Traffic Control staff. Can you please identify the length of time each of these sessions requires? For
instance, 1 hour.

Not at this time. Specific duration is not mandated for training sessions but each session should be
lengthy enough to fully cover the required topic. Course content and instruction may be reviewed and
audited by the Airport at our discretion. Classes addressed in #9 are onsite computerized based classes.
Those four classes combined take approximately-3 hours to complete.



Q48. What is STL’s expectation of recurring/refresher training for the Traffic Control staff? Can you please
define the courses and length of training time which the Consultant is expected to provide?

A48. Not at this time.

Q49. s training, both initial and refresher, billable to STL or should that expense be included within our bill
rate?

A49. Bill rate.

Q50. Will the security team have access to laptop computers to enable online learning and training?

A50.  Not provided by Airport.

Q51. What is the cost of the background check conducted by the Airport Badging Office?

A51.  $85.00 first time badge and fingerprinting. 1 year renewal badges are $35.00 each year.

Q52. Isthere a cost for enrollment of officers in the FBI RapBack Program? If so, what is that cost?

A52. The cost is included in the Fingerprint and Badging fee.

Q53. The RFP states that the Traffic Control staff shall not eat at a post, unless approved to do so.
Additionally, the Consultant is required to provide sufficient personnel to provide continuous coverage
during breaks. Does the current staffing plan, as detailed with a total of 66,144 hours in the 1st year of
service, include staff which provide relief for officers on break?

A53. No, it does not.

Q54. If not, how many additional officers or hours are required to ensure all officers receive their necessary
meal and relief breaks?

A54.  Unknown.

Q55. What are the payment terms which STL utilizes in paying Consultants/Contractors for submitted and
approved invoices? For example, Net 30.

A55.  The City pays invoices upon receipt, but there is no contractual requirement for a payment deadline,
and the City will not accept contract language containing penalties for payment timeliness.
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What is the process for submitting invoices?

The Consultant shall submit itemized invoices on a monthly basis to the Airport Representative, ina
format to be determined by the Airport Representative in consultation with the Consultant.

Does the Consultant need to provide back-up information verifying the employees who staffed the
Airport Traffic Control Services detail? Is that information also required of the subcontractor?

Yes

Can you please confirm how many references need to be submitted by the Consultant? The RFP states
three references are required under the Statement of Qualifications of the RFP and five are necessary
within the Required Submittals section.

Three references are required.

Under Section B of Rights, the RFP states that “More than one Proposal from a Proposer under the same
or different names will not be considered.” Does this statement apply to MBE/WBE subcontractors?
Given the limited number of MBE/WBE firms which are certified, is it acceptable for an M/WBE firm to
submit their candidacy on multiple proposals, serving as the subcontractor with multiple prime
Consultants?

Yes

Can you please confirm that only authorization from a Surety firm with intent to provide a Performance
Bond and Payment Bond is required at proposal submission and that the $100,000 bond, in total, will be
required subsequently, only if the Consultant is selected by STL?

A completed proposal to bond form is required.

Do job postings, which advertise positions or promote hiring events, like Open Houses or Job Fairs in
connection to job opportunities at STL through the selected Consultant, need to be approved in writing
by the Airport’s Public Relations Manager? For instance, job postings to the website for the awarded
Consultant, social media platforms (LinkedIn or Facebook), or third-party job boards (Indeed,
CareerBuilder, etc.)?

No

Within the RFP, STL states that it will provide adequate parking for the Consultant’s employees? Does
that include all Traffic Control Officers and Supervisors?

Yes, parking will be provided for employees.
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Is there any additional cost to the Consultant or its employees for parking?

No, additional cost for parking

Does STL expect that the Consultant will provide free parking to its employees?

Yes. Parking provided by Airport.

The RFP states that “all employees issued identification badges will be required to attend the Security
Identification Display Area (SIDA) class, and any other security or ID Badge-related training class required
by the Airport. How many hours of training are required to obtain the SIDA badge?

Approximately 8 hrs for SIDA instruction and computerized training combined.

What is the cost to the Consultant for the participation of their employees in SIDA class?

There is no additional fee for SIDA Training. The cost of SIDA Training and AAAE computerized training
are included in the Fingerprint and Badging fee.

Given that STL has shared within the RFP the expectation for what benefits may be provided to the
Traffic Control staff, which living wage is applicable to this contract, $13.73 or $18.27?

The Living Wage rates are subject to change every April 1st. A copy of the ordinance and bulletin are
listed on https://www.flystl.com/business/business-diversity-development-1/living-wage

The Living Wage further includes $4.54 per hour due to the officer. Is that compensation intended to be
provided to the officer in addition to their wage? Is that applicable if the wage provided to the officer is
$18.27 or higher?

Currently the Living Wage rate is $18.27 if health benefits are not provided to the employee.

Are the Living Wage requirements only applicable to the Traffic Control Officers, not Supervisors?

The Living Wage requirements are applicable to all employees of covered contracts.

Is the selected vendor empowered to determine the wages which will be paid to members of its staff
including supervisors, administrative personnel, and management?

The City's Living Wage Ordinance 65597 and the City’s Prevailing Wage Ordinance 62124 (City Revised
Code Chapter 6.20) are applicable to and required for City service contracts. The wages paid to covered



employees performing working under a covered contract must be in compliance with these ordinance
requirements.

Q72. Whatis the hourly wage which the current Consultant on STL’s Airport Security Program providing to
their staff? Please provide specifics for both the Security program and the Airport Traffic Control Service,
per position.

A72. The current security Agreement is attached as Attachment 1.

Q73. Are the officers with the current Consultant on STL’s Airport Security Program offered any hiring or sign-
on bonus to its staff? If so, what is that incentive which is being provided?

A73.  Currently, Officers receive a $300 bonus after the successful referral of a new employee. At contractors
expense.

Q74. Inreviewing the Required FTE Staffing, we noticed that the number of FTEs and hours for the Traffic
Control Officers increase from year 1 to year 2 and again into year 3. Can STL explain why the hours are
increasing?

A74. To ensure funds are available for possibly adding additional staff for increasing duties if airport traffic
increases.

Q75. Despite the additional Traffic Control Officers on site, the number of Supervisors and hours of
supervisory oversight remains the same. Given there will be additional Officers on duty, should there
not also be additional Supervisors to monitor their activity?

A75. We believe it is sufficient.

Q76. How many hours per day does the Peak Hour Traffic Control Officer work? Is 8 hours, correct?

A76.  Yes, The post will be filled 8 hours per day but the scheduled hours may not be consecutive.

Q77. As the City is aware, many State, Federal, and Local jurisdictions are enacting legislation which calls for
annual increases to compensation levels, either minimum wage or cost of living. In many cases, these
adjustments cannot be accurately predicted and therefore cannot be accurately reflected in pricing
quotes beyond the current year. Within the RFP we noticed the STL allows for an annual wage
adjustment around April 1st. How will the City handle additional adjustments to the wage and bill rate
which would result from increases to the mandated wages but are not known at this time?

A77. There will be no adjustment to rates permitted.
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Will STL allow for annual cost increases associated with equipment (vehicles, fuel, PPE, uniforms, etc.)?

No

Which vendor currently provides the Airport Traffic Control Services at STL?

Gardaworld provides similar services but there is not a current Airport Landside Traffic Control contract.

Who are the M/WBE subcontractors for the current Airport Landside Traffic Control Services provider?

A-1 Private Investigations and Protective Services Group provides similar services but there is not a
current Airport Traffic Control contract.

If STL selects a new Airport Traffic Control Services provider, is STL under any obligation, either through
local legislation or Collective Bargaining, to re-hire any of the employees who worked at STL under the
previous vendor?

This is a new service. STL does not have an obligation to hire employees from other Agreements.

If so, does STL intend to retain those staff members?

N/A

If STL selects a new Airport Traffic Control Services provider, is that vendor under any obligation to
retain the employment of the staff currently providing Airport Traffic Services?

This is a new service. STL does not have an obligation to hire employees from other Agreements.

If STL selects a new Airport Traffic Control Services consultant and that organization retains some
portion of incumbent employees, will STL and any other badging entity waive the cost to rebadge all
incumbent employees who have current credentials?

No, but the expense may be reduced if the employee continues to work on both contracts as
fingerprinting may not be required.

If the current staff providing Airport Traffic Services are retained or if the new vendor chooses to hire
incumbent officers, will STL honor the wages, seniority, and vacation allotment which that staff has
accrued and earned?

Subject to negotiation
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What are the wages, seniority, and vacation allotment due to each incumbent Airport Traffic Services
employee? Please provide a detailed list from your current vendor so accurate pricing can be tabulated
and these employees can remain whole.

This is a new Agreement there is no incumbent.

Are the Traffic Control staff required to be randomly drug screened? If so, how often?

Yes. Quarterly. Additionally, a 10-panel urine drug screening should be conducted pre-hire.

Are those drug screenings completed by the selected Consultant or STL?

Consultant.

Which organization bears the costs for those drug screenings?

Consultant.

The RFP states that STL may enact liquidated damages due to failures by the selected vendor.

What are the number and amount of fines that have been incurred by the current Consultant or its
employees at STL for Airport Traffic Services?

None.

How many TSA issued fines have been issued for the current Airport Traffic Control Services Consultant
or its employees during the last two years at STL pertaining to the Airport Traffic Services?

None

What metrics will be utilized in determining violations which result in liquidated damages or retainage
penalties?

The circumstances under which a contractor may face liquidated damages, penalties, or fines are
established by the RFP and will be incorporated in the contract. See, for example, Sections 5.F, 17.K,
17.M, 38.G

Will liquidated fines and retainage penalties be included as part of the contract with STL?

Yes.



Qo4.

A94,

Q95.

A95.

96.

A96.

97,

A97.

98.

Q99.

A99.

Should prospective vendors submit their concerns identified through redlines with their proposal
submission or will STL engage in negotiations later?

City will negotiate with the proposer chosen by the Selection Committee.

Are the Airport Traffic Control Services personnel at STL unionized and covered by any Collective
Bargaining Agreement? If so, which Union?

Unknown

Can you please share the Collective Bargaining Agreement under which the staff would be expected to
perform?

N/A

Given the Airport Traffic Control Services are being separated from the overall Security Program at STL,
does the City and Airport expect that the Airport Traffic Control Services will remain either unionized or
non-unionized?

Unknown.

Intentionally left blank

Which license must the staff possess? Are they to be licensed as a Security Officer with St. Louis
City/County?

As you may know, in addition to licensing Security Officers, the City/County of St. Louis also certifies
staff to be “Couriers/Watchman.” Under which classification should the Airport Traffic Control Services
team be licensed?

Must be certified Watchman or Security Officers. Watchman license at a minimum.
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ST. LOUIS LAMBERT
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT.

CITY OF ST. LOUIS
FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT FOR
SECURITY GUARD SERVICES

ST. LOUIS LAMBERT INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

CONTRACT NO.: 75944

CONTRACT NOT-TO- EXCEED AMOUNT: $19,531,000.00

CONSULTANT: Whelan Security Co.
dba GardaWorld Security Services
1699 South Hanley Road
Suite 350
St. Louis, Missouri 63144

FEDERAL L.D. #43 - 0769651

ESTIMATED ANNUAL ENCUMBRANCES:

ORIGINAL 1t AMENDMENT
FY 2021 $3,835,973.00
FY 2022 $6,114,487.00 $250,000.00
FY 2023 $6,646,383.00 $250,000.00
FY 2024 $2,274,064.00 $160,093.00
CONTRACT AUTHORIZED BY: ORDINANCE NO. 71160

BUDGET ACCOUNT: 5637

ST. LOUIS LAMBERT INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT
ST. LOUIS, MISSOURI




CITY OF ST. LOUIS
FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT FOR
SECURITY GUARD SERVICES

ST. LOUIS LAMBERT INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT entered into this 23" day of September, 2021 ("First
Amendment"), by and between the City of St. Louis, a municipal corporation of the State of
~ Missouri ("City") and Whelan Security Co. dba GardaWorld Security Services (“Consultant”) is
an amendment to the Security Guard Services Agreement dated December 16, 2020
(“Agreement”).

WITNESSETH, THAT:

WHEREAS, the City and Consultant are parties to the Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the City and Consultant desire to amend the Agreement to their mutual
benefit, by updating the rates that Consultant is authorized to begin paying employees beginning
July 3, 2021 in order to timely hire candidates to meet critical and immediate staffing needs and
provide full services required pursuant to the Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the promises, and of the mutual
covenants and agreements herein contained, and other valuable considerations, the City and the

Consultant agree that the Agreement shall be amended as follows:



SECTION 1

The Effective Date of this First Amendment shall be July 3, 2021.

SECTION 2

Page one (1) of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with page 1 of this
First Amendment, excluding the words “First Amendment To” from page 1 of this First

Amendment.

SECTION 3

Delete and replace Section 3.B of the Agreement with the new Section 3.B below:

“B.,  The City, subject to the Provisions of this Agreement, shall reimburse the Consultant for
authorized actual expenditures which are reasonable and necessary that are incurred by
the Consultant at the request and direction of the Manager in writing, as provided for
herein (the “Reimbursable Expenses™). Consultant shall maintain full and complete
records of all expenses for which it intends to be reimbursed. (See Exhibit C entitled
“Reimbursable Expenses™ which is attached hereto and incorporated herein).

in nths of Service
Starting
Rate New 13th 25th 37th
Hire & Base Month Month Month
Rate Rate— Rate - Rate —
through 24th 26t 48t
month 12 month month month
(SO-1) (S0-2) (S0-3) (S0-4)
Security Guard,
Traffic Officers
& Ground
Transportation
Enforcement
| SalaryperHour | § 15.00 *1.5% $15.23 *1.5% $1545 *1.5% $ 15.69
Billed Rate per
Hour $25.18 $25.56 $25.80 $26.20
13th 25th
Base Month Month 37th Month
through Rate — 24t Rate — 26 Rate — 48t
month 12 month (SS- month (SS- month (SS-
(SS-1) 2) 3) 4)
5% above
Security
Supervisor Guard SO-4
Salary per Hour | rate $ 1647 #15% | $§ 1672 | *15% | § 1697 | *15% [ § 1722
Billed Rate per '
Hour $27.50 $27.91 $28.34 $28.76




13th 25th
Base Month Month 37th Month
through Rate — 24t Rate — 261 Rate — 48t
month 12 month month month
(MO-1) (MO-2) (MO-3) (MO-4)
2% above
Assistant Security
Manager Salary | Supervisor .
per Hour SS-4 $ 1757 *15% | $ 1783 | *1.5% | § 1810 | *1.5% | $ 1837
Billed Rate per
Hour $29.33 $29.78 $30.22 $30.67
SECTION 4

Delete and replace Section 4.D of the Agreement with the new Section 4.D below:

“D.  Inno event shall Fees, Reimbursable Expenses, and Extras provided for in this
Agreement exceed this Agreement’s Contract-Not-To-Exceed Amount of
Nineteen Million Five Hundred Thirty-One Thousand Dollars ($19,531,000.00)
during the term of this Agreement. Payment for the Fees and Extras shall be made
at the rates and amounts provided for herein subject to and in accordance with the
Provisions of this Agreement. All payments hereunder shall be contingent upon
the appropriations of sufficient funds by the City annually.”

SECTION §

All other terms and conditions of the Agreement not inconsistent with this First Amendment are
unchanged and are hereby ratified and approved and shall remain in full force and effect.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto affixed their hands and seals as set forth

below: TR TC TR ORY
JODY M. JENKINS

Noux Public - Notary Seal
SYATE OF MISSQURI

WHELAN SECURITY CO. {0ty Commisaion Exphen: Avg. 26, 2022
DBA GARDAWORLD SECURITY SERVICES ATTEST: § _ Commision # 14620763

D AR AR R SETaR  a e Ten s aa s AT ey oY

M e o o

% Y add 7-z-zoz|  BY: o7/ /2ot
Signature Date ure /' Date

THE CITY OF ST. LOUIS, MISSOURI, OWNER AND OPERATOR OF
ST. LOUIS LAMBERT INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT:

The foregoing First Amendment was approved on this _Hh day of
\ /gi Y 2021, by the Airport Commission.

The foregoing First Amendment was approved by the Board of Estimate and Apportionment at
its meeting on Ly H , 2021,

APPROVED AS TO FORM BY: COUNTERSIGN]’Eﬁ' BY:
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| ST. LOUIS LAMBERT
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT.

CITY OF ST. LOUIS
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT FOR
SECURITY GUARD SERVICES

ST. LOUIS LAMBERT INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

CONTRACT NO.: 75944

CONTRACT NOT-TO- EXCEED AMOUNT: $18,870,907.00

CONSULTANT: Whelan Security Co.
dba GardaWorld Security Services
1699 South Hanley Road
Suite 350
St. Louis, Missouri 63144

FEDERAL LD. #43 - 0769651

ESTIMATED ANNUAL ENCUMBRANCES:

FY 2021 $3,835,973.00
FY 2022 $6,114,487.00
FY 2023 $6,646,383.00
FY 2024 $2,274,064.00

CONTRACT AUTHORIZED BY: ORDINANCE NO. 71160

BUDGET ACCOUNT: 5637

ST. LOUIS LAMBERT INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT
ST. LOUIS, MISSOURI




CITY OF ST. LOUIS
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT FOR
SECURITY GUARD SERVICES

ST. LOUIS LAMBERT INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

This Agreement, made and entered into this 16" day of December, 2020 (“Agreement"), by
and between the City of St. Louis, & municipal corporation of the State of Missouri (the "City") and
Whelan Security Co. dba GardaWorld Security Services (“Consultant™).

WITNESSETH THAT:

WHEREAS, City owns and operates St. Louis Lambert International Airport (the
"Airport"); and

WHEREAS, City seeks to contract with the Consultant for Security Guard Services as

more fully described herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the payments, terms, conditions,
agreements, hereinafter set forth, to be made and performed by City, the Consultant hereby
promises and agrees that it will faithfully perform all the services called for by this Agreement,

in the manner and under the terms, covenant, and conditions hereinafter set forth.
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CITY OF ST. LOUIS
ST. LOUIS LAMBERT INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

DEFINITIONS
The following terms and definitions are used in this Agreement:

“Agreement” This means the contract for Security Guard Services
between the City and Whelan Security Co. dba
GardaWorld Security Services.

“Airport” : This means St. Louis Lambert International Airport, which
is owned by the City and is operated for the City by the
Airport Authority of The City of St. Louis, a department of
the City.

“Airport Director” This means the Director of Airports of The City of St.
Louis or his/her authorized or designated representative(s).

"Airport Representative" This means the Airport Security Coordinator (ASC),
Alternate ASC, or other representative designated or
authorized by the Manager.

“Assistant Manager of

Office Administration” This means any person the Consultant employs to oversee
scheduling based on staff requirements, a thorough
knowledge of post orders, instructions, emergency
procedures, client policies and procedires and any other
information necessary for effective and efficient
management of the account. This employee will ensure
assigned personnel are properly licensed, trained, and meet
uniform and grooming standards. This employee will
manage payroll for primary and subcontracted personnel on
the account and resolve billing discrepancies with the
client. This employee will order office supplies and ensure
strict inventory control and proper care of any Airport-
issued items. This employee will provide personnel
management by mentoring and coaching supervisors and
security officers, assist in coordinating training schedules,
and ensuring that complete and concise documentation is
maintained in all matters of disciplinary action. This
employee will provide internal and external
communications, both oral and written, in support of
customer satisfaction efforts.



“Assistant Manager of
Security Compliance”

“Assistant Manager of
Traffic and Parking
Control”

“Assistant Manager
of Training”

This position will likely remain unfilled until operations
return to pre-COVID-19 levels. In the interim, these
duties shall be completed by the Branch Manager or his/her
designee. This means any person the Consultant employs
to oversee operational management of Consultant and
subcontractor personnel working in positions that perform
security functions required by the Transportation Security
Administration and/or the Airport Security Program. These
positions will be in regulated areas of the Airport to include
AOA/SIDA, sterile, and secured areas, and at access points
leading to these locations. This employee will conduct
quality assurance by conducting post inspections and
testing to ensure security officers understand and abide by
post orders. They will provide onsite coaching and
document corrective actions.

This position will likely remain unfilled until operations
return to pre-COVID-19 levels. In the interim, these
duties shall be completed by the Branch Manager or his/her
designee. This means any person the Consultant employs to
oversee operational management of Consultant and
subcontractor personnel working in positions directing
traffic, enforcing parking restrictions, coordinating taxi
services, and conducting vehicle inspections at entrances to
the Airport’s public garages. This employee will conduct
quality assurance by conducting post inspections and
testing to ensure security officers understand and abide by
post orders. They will provide onsite coaching and
document corrective actions.

This means any person the Consultant employs to oversee
new-hire training, post order specific training, quarterly
employee training, recurrent post order instruction, and
remedial training of Consultant and subcontractor
employees. This employee will conduct quality assurance
by conducting post inspections and testing to ensure
security officers understand and abide by post orders. They
will provide onsite coaching and document corrective
actions. '



“Authority”

“Branch Manager”

“Branch Office”

“City”

This means the Airport Authority of The City of St. Louis.

This means any person the Consultant employs to oversee
and manage their Branch Office and personnel providing
service at the Airport. The Branch Manager is responsible
for management of the services provided under the terms of
this Agreement with the City to include administrative and
operational management of services provided in accordance
with this Agreement. The Branch Manager is also
responsible for managing the Airport Security Guard
Services provided by any subcontractor of the Consultant.

This means a division of the Consultant’s company that is
physically located at the Airport and includes the office of
the Branch Manager. The Branch Office must be staffed
on a schedule determined by the Airport Representative,
and be fully equipped to perform all functions associated
with the management and operation of Airport Security
Guard Services to be provided in accordance with the
provisions of this Agreement. The Branch Office space, as
well as the routine maintenance of said space, will be
provided by the City at no charge to the Consultant.

The Branch Office must contain the records and files
generated by the Consultant in the performance of the
services contemplated herein or provided by the City,
which must be available for inspection and use by the
Airport Representative or his/her designee.

The Branch Office and all equipment contained therein
(including telephones, Wi-Fi, copier, etc.) must only be
used in connection with the Airport Security Guard
Services under this Agreement, and may not be used for
other business of the Consultant.

During hours when the Branch Office is closed, the
Consultant will provide contact information for the
Manager on Duty (MOD) and alternate contact information
for other senior staff as requested by the Airport
Representative. An MOD will be available 24 hours per
day, 7 days per week.

This means The City of St. Louis, owner and operator of St.
Louis Lambert International Airport.



“Commencement Date”

“Consultant”

“Contract Year”

(41 d ay(s}”

“Expiration Date”

“Holiday”

“Manager”

“Provisions”

“Security Guard”

“Security Supervisor”

This means the first day of the term of this Agreement,
November 1, 2020 as provided for in Section 9.0.

This means Whelan Security Co. dba GardaWorld Security
Services.

This means a consecutive twelve (12) calendar
month period beginning on the Commencement
Date and each twelve (12) consecutive calendar
month period thereafter during the term of the |
Agreement.

This means consecutive calendar days unless otherwise
expressly stated.

This means the. date the term of this Agreement ends
which is October 31, 2023 as provided for in
Section 9.0.

This means New Year’s Day, Memorial Day,
Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, and
Christmas Day.

This means the Airport Deputy Director of Operations or
his/ her designated or authorized representative.

This means the terms, covenants, conditions, warranties,
and specifications of this Agreement.

This means an unarmed licensed security guard officer the
Consultant employs (including its subcontractors’
employees) who is to perform functions determined by the
Airport Representative, including by not limited to:
ensuring that emergencies and security violations are
readily discovered and reported to the City and who
intervenes directly in situations that require minimal action
to safeguard property or persons. Duties require Airport
specific training. The Consultant shall also provide
classroom training as provided for in Section 4, entitled
“Scope of Work,” before assignment to a post.

This means an unarmed licensed security officer the
Consultant employs (including its subcontractors’
employees) who is to perform functions determined by the
Airport Representative, including, but not limited to: a)
ensuring enforcement of regulations designed to prevent



breaches of security; b) exercising judgment and discretion
in dealing with emergencies and security violations
encountered; and c) determining whether first response
should be to intervene directly, to keep situation under
surveillance, or to report situation so that it can be handled
by appropriate authority. Duties require Airport specific
training approved by the Airport Representative. The
Consultant shall also provide classroom training, as
provided for in Section 4, entitled “Scope of Work,” before
assignment to a post.

2. SCOPE OF WORK

A. Prior to the COVID-19 impact to operations, the previous Security Guard Services
contract had approximately 128 Full Time Equivalent (FTE). As of September 2020,
due to on-going COVID-19 operational declines, the contract required only an
approximately 100 FTE, a 28% reduction. Subject to the Provisions of this
Agreement, for the purpose of setting the staffing FTE and the Not-to-Exceed dollar
amount, Year 1 of the contract staffing plan will be set at 106.28 FTE, increasing by
7.5% each year of the contract to account for the 22 % of the 28% staffing reduction
due to COVID-19. Year 2 FTE will be set 115.03 and Year 3 will be set at 124.35.
These FTE estimates are based on a forecast that is still undetermined and variable.
At all times, the actual FTE required will be based on the Airport Representative’s
need and actual operations.

B. The work performed under this Agreement must be controlled and managed through a
Branch Office located at the Airport and designated for that purpose by the Airport
Representative.

The Consultant shall provide security services at pedestrian and

vehicular gates and access points, employee inspection services, employee screening
services, vehicle screening services, airfield, terminal and bag-room patrols,
perimeter inspections, alarm response, CCTV monitoring, assisting with emergencies,
ID badging services & verification, traffic management and parking control,
assistance with taxi services, escort services for restricted area access, ramp licensing,
physical security inspections/patrols/badge checks, inspection of delivered goods,
dispatch services, temperature screening, and other related security and support
functions in support of the Airport’s security programs and/or emergency response, as
ordered in writing by Manager.

C. The Consultant will identify a single point of contact and an alternate point of contact

through which all information concerning security service can be communicated to
and from the Airport Representative.
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. The Consultant shall provide 24 hours of security guard service per day, seven (7)
days a week, including Holidays as defined in Section 35.G. Consultant shall
maintain minimum staffing levels at all times.

. The Consultant shall provide a Branch Manager, Assistant Manager of Training, and
an Assistant Manager of Office Administration at 40 hours each per week, subject to
change by the Airport Representative. The Consultant may be required to provide an
Assistant Manager of Security Compliance and/or an Assistant Manager of Traffic
and Parking Control if requested in writing by the Airport Representative.

. The Consultant shall provide at least twelve (12) (exact number to be determined by
the Airport Representative) appropriately trained and Airport badged Security Guards
per shift on-site within two (2) hours of notification of an emergency call-up by the
Airport Representative. Consultant shall timely increase staffing to meet
unanticipated Airport Operational needs such as large-scale emergencies or National
Terrorism Advisory System Level increases, as ordered in writing by the Airport
Representative. The Airport Representative may waive some Airport specific
training requirements and certifications in the event of such emergencies.

. Consultant understands and agrees that minimum staffing levels may be increased or
decrease at any time during the contract period, as ordered by the Airport
Representative, in order to meet daily security and safety requirements, seasonal
demands, changing TSA requirements and budgetary changes as determined by the
City. Heat relief will be implemented by the Airport Representative when the heat
index rises to 95 degrees Fahrenheit or above and cold relief will be implemented
when the wind chill factor reaches 25 degrees Fahrenheit or below.

. Consultant shall provide the Airport Representative, no less than seven (7) calendar
days in advance, a weekly schedule demonstrating coverage as defined within this
Agreement.

Consultant understand and agrees that the Consultant may be required to contract
independently with tenants and other contractors working at the Airport and in need
of security services to comply with Airport security requirements. Consultant
understands and agrees that the Contractor may only charge tenants and other
contractors up to 45% over the agreed upon contracted billing rate for the Airport to
cover overhead such as overtime pay, extra administrative fees, and equipment,
unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the Manager.

Consultant shall provide two (2) vehicles to provide 24 hours per day/7 days per week
(including Holidays) on site assistance. The vehicles must be marked with the
company name on the sides of both front doors of the vehicle. The Consultant will be
reimbursed $21,216 annually for each of these two vehicles and may invoice the -
Airport at a monthly rate of $1,768.00 each. Additionally, up to four (4) properly
marked vehicles must be available within 24 hours for spec1al details or irregular
operations. These extra vehicles may be required to remain on site until the special

11



detail has been completed, typically lasting 12-16 hours. If the additional vehicles are
required for a special detail or emergency, the Consultant may invoice the Airport
$59/day per vehicle while they are required by the Airport Representative to be on
site. The vehicle make, model, markings, and lighting must be approved, in writing,
by the Airport Representative.

. The Consultant, and their sub-contractors, shall provide new and complete personal
protective equipment (PPE) and proper uniforms of the type and style dictated by
local weather conditions, CDC & County Department of Health standards and said
uniforms must be approved in writing by the Airport Representative. Uniform
expenses will be included in the hourly rate itemization and is not to be considered a
part of the Consultant’s employees’ wages in the uniform allowance. The authorized
uniform, approved in writing by the Airport Representative, must be provided at
Consultant’s expense with no cost to the Consultant’s employees. Consultant shall
equip all security officers with retroreflective safety vests, which shall be worn at all
times on the airfield, at vehicle gates, and when working traffic control. Vests worn at
traffic posts must be distinctly different from vests worn at security posts.
Differentiation must be readily identifiable.

. Consultant understands and agrees that in order to perform acceptable security guard
duties, the Consultant must have:

1. Knowledge of airport general security and asset protection procedures;

2. Knowledge of Standard Operating Procedures and Post Orders, as published by
the City;

3. Knowledge of the physical layout of the airport;

4. Knowledge of all rules and regulations of which the Service Provider is
responsible to enforce;

5. Knowledge of physical security systems including access control systems, CCTV
systems, barriers, gates, fencing, and locking devices installed at assigned posts;

6. Knowledge of patrol techniques, i.e. foot vs. mobile;
7. Knowledge of emergency response procedures;
8. Knowledge of first aid for self and others;

9. Knowledge of operational security and protection of sensitive security
information;

10. Knowledge of personnel inspection practices and procedures;
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detail has been completed, typically lasting 12-16 hours. If the additional vehicles are
required for a special detail or emergency lasting greater than 48 hours, the
Consultant may invoice the Airport $59/day per vehicle while they are required by
the Airport Representative to be on site. The vehicle make, model, markings, and
lighting must be approved, in writing, by the Airport Representative.

. The Consultant, and their sub-contractors, shall provide new and complete personal
protective equipment (PPE) and proper uniforms of the type and style dictated by
local weather conditions, CDC & County Department of Health standards and said
uniforms must be approved in writing by the Airport Representative. Uniform
expenses will be included in the hourly rate itemization and is not to be considered a
part of the Consultant’s employees’ wages in the uniform allowance. The authorized
uniform, approved in writing by the Airport Representative, must be provided at
Consultant’s expense with no cost to the Consultant’s employees. Consultant shall
equip all security officers with retroreflective safety vests, which shall be worn at all
times on the airfield, at vehicle gates, and when working traffic control. Vests worn at
traffic posts must be distinctly different from vests worn at security posts.
Differentiation must be readily identifiable.

. Consultant understands and agrees that in order to perform acceptable security guard
duties, the Consultant must have:

1. Knowledge of airport general security and asset protection procedures;

2. Knowledge of Standard Operating Procedures and Post Orders, as published by
the City;

3. Knowledge of the physical layout of the airport;

4. Knowledge of all rules and regulations of which the Service Provider is
responsible to enforce;

5. Knowledge of physical security systems including access control systems, CCTV
systems, barriers, gates, fencing, and locking devices installed at assigned posts;

6. Knowledge of patrol techniques, i.e. foot vs. mobile;
7. Knowledge of emergency response procedures;
8. Knowledge of first aid for self and others;

9. Knowledge of operational security and protection of sensitive security
information;

10. Knowledge of personnel inspection practices and procedures;
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11. Knowledge of personnel screening practices and procedures; and
12. Knowledge of vehicle inspection practices and procedures.

. The Consultant shall ensure that all Security Guards, Security Supervisors and
Assistant Managers are thoroughly familiar with all applicable federal, state, and
local laws, rules, regulations and procedures including Airport rules and procedures
before they are allowed to staff any Airport post unsupervised. If any significant
change in the rules, regulations and procedures are mandated by the Airport
Representative or the Transportation Security Administration (TSA), the City will
conduct retraining at the City’s expense. However, if deficiencies in the Consultant’s
performance and staff are observed, this will require recurrent training at the
Consultant’s expense (See Section O below).

. At the Commencement of this Agreement, and at any time thereafter for newly
assigned Security Guards, Security Supervisors, and Assistant Managers the initial
minimum training requirements for all security personnel assigned to work at the
Airport under this Agreement will be as outlined below. Training will be conducted
at a facility provided by the Consultant, away from Airport premises, except as noted.
Training will be at the expense of the Consultant unless expressly provided for herein
(see Section 4.0, Paragraphs L., N., O., and P.). The Airport Representative may
amend, delete or add to the Initial Minimum Training as operationally necessary, in
coordination with the Consultant. The “Initial Minimum Training Requirements” for
each Security Guard and Security Supervisor will include but not necessarily be
limited to:

1. Orientation (2 hours) — Definition of Security Relationship of Private Security and
Law Enforcement, Public Relations, Deportment and Appearance, Maintenance
and Safeguarding of Uniforms and Equipment.

2. Legal Power and Limitation (2 hours) — Prevention vs. Apprehension, Arrest,
Search and Seizure, Use of Force and Civil Liability.

3. General Duties (2 hours) — Patrol and Inspection, Fire Hazards and appropriate
Fire Responses, Safety.

4. Handling Emergencies (1 hour) — Procedures for Fires, Bomb Threats,
Explosions, Floods, Riots, etc.; including Reporting Emergencies.

5. Report Writing (1 hour) — Note taking, essentials of producing a concise,
complete written report.

6. Identifying Suspicious Items & Packages Training and Identifying Vehicle Borne
Improvised Explosives Devices (VBIED) Training.

7. Sensitive Security Information (SSI) Training.
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8. Americans with Disability Act (ADA) Awareness Training.

9. Human Trafficking

10. Security Identification Display Area (SIDA) Training (on Airport).

11. Non-Movement Area Driver Training if required for badge type (on Airport).

12. Airport’s computerized Interactive Employee Training (IET) Modules as required
by badge type (on Airport).

a.
b.
c.

d.

€.

Airport Emergency Plan

Basic Security Awareness
Active Shooter

Public Protection (AOA Drivers)

Non-Movement Area Driver Training (AOA Drivers)

13. Post-Specific Training (on Airport):

a.

g

Comprehensive Vehicle Assessment and Inspection Techniques, to include
Proper Use of Inspection Mirrors on interior and exterior (undercarriage) of
vehicle.

IED recognition.

Employee inspections and screening to include bag inspections, handheld
magnetometer usage, and pat down procedures.

Delivery inspections and searches of goods.

Traffic Management & Control techniques and roadwéy hazard prevention
and safety.

Taxi Starter Training.

Alarm Center / CCTV.

14. The supervisor and assistant managers must be knowledgeable of all rules and
regulations which he/she is responsible for enforcing. The Supervisor and
assistant managers must be knowledgeable about each security post, direct access
point and applicable post orders. The Supervisor must review Security Officers’
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reports. The Supervisor is also responsible for ensuring the necessary notifications
of incidents are performed during his/her shift.

15. Examination (1 hour) ~ Consultant will prepare, administer and discuss an
examination approved by the Airport Representative. Contents of the examination
should be submitted in advance to the Airport Representative for review and
written approval.

. Documentation of compliance with the above minimum requirements for each
assigned Security Guard and Security Supervisor must be included in the personnel
records of each employee and must be kept and maintained on file at all times at the
Branch Office.

. The Airport Representative, at his or her sole discretion, may require additional Security
Guard and Security Supervisor training over the term of this Agreement. Any additional
training that is necessary to improve unsatisfactory performance or correct deficiencies
noted by the Airport Representative will be at the sole expense of the Consultant.

. Security Guards and Security Supervisors assigned to staff designated posts may also be
required by the Airport Representative to attend remedial training classes, to be
conducted by the City at the Consultant’s expense.

. The Airport Representative retains the right to conduct periodic testing and observation
of all personnel to ensure these training requirements are being met. Further, if it is
determined by the Airport Representative that the standards are not being met, retraining
will be conducted immediately by the Consultant at the Consultant’s expense.

. The Consultant agrees to immediately replace any person employed under this agreement
should the Airport Representative recommend that the action should be done for the good
of the services being rendered under this Agreement. Such request by the Airport
Representative will not require written notification to the Consultant and may be for any
reason provided as long as such recommended action is not prohibited by law.

. At the start of this Agreement, the Airport Representative, at his or her sole discretion,
may require a Security Guard Services class tailored to the work contemplated herein. If
ordered, this class will be conducted at the expense of the City.

. Consultant acknowledges and agrees that all individuals assigned to work under this
Agreement must meet or satisfy the following minimum requirements:

1. Be properly licensed under guidelines set forth by St. Louis County and carry such
license at all times while providing service under this Agreement;

2. Have basic written and oral skills in English;
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3. Have a high school diploma or equivalent;
4. Be 21 years of age or older;
5. Be a permanent resident or citizen of the U.S.;

6. Submit to a background check, including a fingerprint-based criminal history
record check (CHRC) and a security threat assessment (STA) as required by 49
CFR 1542. This background check will be conducted by the Airport Badging
Office at the Consultant’s expense. No Security Guard, Security Supervisor,
Assistant Manager, or Branch Manager will be issued an airport-issued
identification (ID) badge until the background check has been completed to the
satisfaction of the Airport Representative. Badgeholders will be enrolled in the
FBI RapBack Program, a program that perpetually vets badge holders for arrests
that may result in airport ID revocation.

7. Be properly uniformed, including PPE, badged, and equipped; all such uniforms
and equipment must be approved in advance and in writing by the Airport
Representative.

8. Pass an initial chemical test and analysis for the detection of the illegal use or
abuse of drugs and alcohol. Testing will be done by an independent laboratory at
the Consultant’s expense. The Airport Representative reserves the right, at his or
her sole discretion, to approve the type of test, the threshold levels for initial and
confirmatory tests, if applicable, and the laboratory or clinic selected.

U. The Consultant shall utilize G-Track, a technology based tool, to enhance
performance of security officers and security managers and to provide information to the
Airport Representative in a timely and efficient manner. Electronic daily activity reports,
electronic incident reports, electronic pass down logs, electronic post orders, and
electronic asset and key inventory programs will be utilized as determined through
coordination between the Consultant and approved by the Airport Representative. All
statistical data and reports generated through the Consultant’s technology platform must
be available for Airport review for the duration of this Agreement and may only be
released to the City. Daily informational requests, as determined by the Airport
Representative, will be emailed to specific Airport personnel to ensure regulatory
requirements are adhered to and that operational issues are resolved. The Consultant will
ensure that Security Guards and Security Supervisors timely submit a written shift report
in a form acceptable to the Airport Representative for every shift worked. The Consultant
may not invoice the Airport for either the 38 electronic devices and/or the 38 monthly
subscriptions to G-Track, however, the consultant will retain ownership of the devices
and the City will retain ownership of the data.

V. Consultant shall perform regular (defined as no less than once per week) quality
assurance inspections and tests to ensure compliance with all federal, state and local

16



regulations and with Airport requirements stated in this scope of work and rectify any
observed problems. The quality assurance program data will be made available to the
Airport Representative within forty-eight (48) hours of a request being made. All

data supporting this program must be maintained by the Consultant for the duration of
the signed agreement and must be presented to the Airport Representative no less

than once per calendar month.,

W. Consultant’s Branch Manager and Assistant Managers will meet with the Airport
Representative no less than once per quarter. These will be scheduled meetings, and
at these meetings, the Consultant shall provide results of internal quality assurance
inspections and testing as required in this Agreement.

X. While on duty, the Consultant’s personnel:

1. Will comply with Social Distancing guidelines in effect at such time that are
recommended by the CDC in coordination with the Airport Representative.

a. Any job related task where social distancing is impractical shall be
completed with the appropriate level of PPE.

2. Will be alert and attentive, and shall not use personal wireless devices (including
Bluetooth), socialize, or conduct personal business on their watch.

3. Shall not smoke or use chewing tobacco or E-cigarettes on post.

4. Shall not eat at a post unless approved to do so by the Airport Representative.
Consultant shall ensure that sufficient personnel are available to provide
continuous coverage at posts during breaks.

5. Shall not discuss duty assignments or sensitive security information (SSI) with
anyone who does not have an official need to know.

6. Consultant & employees are prohibited from making any video or audio
recordings of incidents or responses regarding Airport issues unless approved
by the Airport Representative. Recording in restricted areas is not allowed.

7. Consultant’s personnel, who, in the performance of their official duties,
become knowledgeable or aware of the details of an act of air piracy, terrorist
activity, or unauthorized access, shall report it immediately to Airport
authorities and not divulge sensitive security information (SSI) to
unauthorized personnel. Such information includes, without limitation:

a.Any information about an incident or efforts to resolve an incident, or any
disclosure which may jeopardize the safety of any persons involved.
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b.Any information identified by officials of an agency of the U.S.
Government which concermns techniques and procedures used for resolving
acts of air piracy, the disclosure of which is likely to jeopardize the safety
of domestic and international civil aviation.

c.Any information about the security systems and procedures in place at the
Airport. This includes personnel information, shift schedules, computer
access codes, personnel access procedures, and other security and safety
information.

Y. Consultant shall be responsible for directing and controlling the work of its employees to
inctude disciplinary measures and performance incentives.

Z. Consultant shall be responsible for the repair, replacement, maintenance, disinfecting and
cleaning of all equipment, supplies, office space, guard booths (cleaning only), access
contro] readers, etc. necessary to perform satisfactorily the requirements and duties
outlined in this specification as per the recommendations of the CDC and guidance of the
Airport Representative.

1. Consultant shall be responsible for developing and implementing plans and
procedures to prevent and mitigate the spread of COVID-19 or any other infectious
disease the maximum extent practical, with approval from the Airport Representative.

AA. Any work not herein specified which may be fairly implied as included in this
Agreement, of which the Director shall be the sole and absolute judge, will be done by
the Consultant at no extra cost to the City. The Consultant shall do all additional or extra
work (“Extra Work”) that may be ordered by the Director in writing. No claim for
Extra Work shall be granted or allowed in favor of the Consultant unless such Extra
Work has been ordered in advance by written request of the Director.

FEES/REIMBURSEMENTS

A. The City, subject to the Provisions of this Agreement, shall pay to the Consultant,
in consideration of the above services rendered in performance of this Agreement
“Fees” based upon the rates and charges set forth below. Consultant shall invoice
the City monthly for all services ordered and performed in accordance with the
Provisions of this Agreement

B. The City, subject to the Provisions of this Agreement, shall reimburse the
Consultant for authorized actual expenditures which are reasonable and necessary
that are incurred by the Consultant at the request and direction of the Manager in
writing, as provided for herein (the “Reimbursable Expenses”). Consultant shall
maintain full and complete records of all expenses for which it intends to be
reimbursed. (See Exhibit C entitled “Reimbursable Expenses” which is
attached hereto and incorporated herein).
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Conti s Months of Service
2020
Prevailing 12th 24th 36th
Wage / Month Month Month
Base Rate Rate Rate Rate
Security Guard :
Salary per Hour | $ 13.98 | *1.5% $ 14.19 *15% [$1440] *1.5% |$14.62
Billed Rate per
Hour $23.56 $23.85 $24.15 $24.46
12th 24th 36th
Month Month Month
Base Rate Rate Rate Rate
5% above
Security Security
Supervisor Guard Base
Salary per Hour | Rate $§ 14.68| *15% |$§ 1490 | *1.5% |$ 1512 |*1.5% |$ 15.35
Billed Rate per
Hour $24.54 $25.08 $25.39 $25.72
12th 24th 36th
Month Month Month
Base Rate Rate Rate Rate
Assistant 5% above
Manager Salary | Security
per Hour Supv. $ 1541 *1.5% |$ 15641 *15% ($ 15.88] *1.5% |$§ 16.12
Billed Rate per
Hour $25.80 $26.13 $26.47 $26.82
4, PAYMENTS
A. All Fees, Reimbursable Expenses, or Extras to be paid by the City to Consultant

for the work performed pursuant to this Agreement shall be paid in due course
after receipt of Consultant's itemized invoices to the City, subject to and in
accordance with the Provisions of this Agreement. (See Sections 3.0 & 6.0.)

Acceptance by Consultant of the final payment shall constitute payment in full for
all work done.

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed or interpreted to create a debt,

liability, or obligation of any kind whatsoever upon the City or Airport for the
City or Airport to order or request any particular amount of work or services (See
Section 24.G).
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In no event shall Fees, Reimbursable Expenses, and Extras provided for in this
Agreement exceed this Agreement’s Contract-Not-To-Exceed Amount of
Eighteen Million Eight Hundred Seventy Thousand Nine Hundred Seven

Dollars ($18,870,907.00) during the term of this Agreement. Payment for the Fees
and Extras shall be made at the rates and amounts provided for herein subject to
and in accordance with the Provisions of this Agreement. All payments
hereunder shall be contingent upon the appropriations of sufficient funds by the
City annually.

The Consultant agrees to submit invoices for the services and work performed
pursuant to this Agreement in a timely manner and as provided for in this
Agreement. The Consultant hereby acknowledges and agrees that the City shall not
be required or obligated to pay any invoices submitted to the City by the Consultant
more than six (6) months after the expiration or earlier termination of this
Agreement or be responsible for any costs or expenses incurred by the Consultant
for services or work performed pursuant to this Agreement for which City Invoices
or Airport Invoices have not been submitted to the City for payment within six (6)
months of the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement,

5. FAILURE TO PERFORM

A.

If the Airport Representative determines at his/her sole discretion that the
quality or quantity of any work required under this Agreement is
unacceptable or that the Consultant has failed or refused to perform the job
or work, the City may take reasonable and necessary actions to perform
the work or remedy the Consultant’s failed or under performance(s). All
reasonable costs or expenses incurred by the City will be promptly and
timely paid or reimbursed by the Consultant as provided for herein. The
City may deduct such costs, plus 15 % for administrative costs, from any
payments due to the Consultant under this Agreement or the City may
invoice the Consultant for such costs which will be due within thirty (30)
days of the City’s written request. Subsequent to receipt of notice that the
City will perform the work or remedy the breach or default, the
Consultant will not undertake further performance of such work without
the specific prior authorization from the Airport Representative.

The work, if necessary, and any other actions taken by the City pursuant to this
subsection may only be performed after first providing at least five (5) working
days notice to Consultant of such failure to comply during which time the
Consultant may demonstrate to the City why no such alleged failure is present or
to timely remedy such alleged failure. However, the City's right to perform such
work will not arise, if such failure cannot be reasonably cured within five (5)
working days and the Consultant promptly and with due diligence takes prompt
and appropriate corrective action and diligently purses until the failure is
corrected to the City's reasonable satisfaction.
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If any fault by the Consultant, sub-contractors and/or their employees results in an
Administrative Action (Letter of Correction, Warning Notice or Notice of Non-
Compliance), either issued to the Consultant or the Airport from the TSA, the
Consultant’s next monthly invoice shall be reduced by $2,000 to cover
administrative and investigation expenses.

If any fault by the Consultant, sub-contractors and/or their employees results in a
Civil Penalty by the TSA, either issued to the Consultant or the Airport, the
Consultant shall be responsible for the prompt payment of the fine (to be paid
either directly to the Airport or the TSA). Additionally, the Consultant’s next
monthly invoice shall be reduced by $4,000 to cover administrative and
investigation expenses.

6. EXTRA WORK

A.

At the written request and direction of the Director, additional Security Guard
Services work, or modifications, additions, or extras (“Extras”) may be required.
The fee or charge for Extras will be agreed upon in advance in writing on a case-by
-case basis. See Section 4.A. For all work conducted under this Agreement, the
total amount to be paid to the Consultant must not exceed the total Contract Not-
To-Exceed Amount of this Agreement. See Section 4.F.

Any work not specified in this Agreement that may be fairly implied as included
in this Agreement will be done by the Consultant without extra charge. The
Director will be the sole judge.

L. The Consultant will do all Extras that may be requested or ordered in
writing by the Director. No claim for Extras will be allowed unless such
Extras have been ordered in advance by written request of the Director.

2. The Consultant will furnish the Director with itemized bills for all items
included under this heading, and such bills may be verified or audited by the

City.

3. All bills for Extras done in any month, will be submitted to the Director, in
writing, before the 15% day of the following month, and the amounts therein
must be in accordance with the daily time, material, and equipment
statements approved by the Director.

4. As proof of costs, the Consultant must submit copies of itemized invoices

received from the Consultant’s approved subcontractor(s) which have been
previously reviewed and approved by the Consultant.
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TERM

The term of this Agreement will be for three (3) years beginning on the Commencement Date
specified below and ending thirty-six (36) months thereafter unless terminated or cancelled as
provided for in Section 30.0 entitled “Cancellation”. This Agreement is expressly subject to,

and will not become effective or binding on the City until, fully executed by all signatories of

5. Extras will be paid for based on of a fixed amount, rate, charge, or any
combination thereof agreed upon and approved by the Consultant and the
Director in writing prior to such Extras being performed. See Section 4.A.

6. For all Extras performed under this Agreement, the Consultant shall submit
detailed work order tickets identifying, at a minimum, each piece of
Equipment called in for repair, the reason for the repair, a description of the
problem, and the maintenance/repair work performed.

the City. The commencement and expiration dates will be as follows:

“Commencement Date”: November 1, 2020 “Expiration Date”: October 31, 2023

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES

A.

Before work under this Agreement commences, the Consultant will designate, by
written notice to the Airport Representative, an experienced, competent and
knowledgeable, full-time employee of the Consultant as the Consultant's “Project
Coordinator.” The Project Coordinator will be fully authorized to act for the
Consultant in all matters covered by this Agreement. The Consultant will also
furnish all supervisory personnel with copies of these specifications and

will make certain that all such personnel understand the Provisions

thercof.

When necessary, or as requested by the Airport Representative, the Consultant will
make periodic reports and recommendations to the Airport Representative
concerning conditions, transactions, situations or circumstances encountered by the
Consultant relating to the services to be performed under this Agreement.

The Consultant's performance under this Agreement must meet the highest
standards of care, skill, and diligence provided by professionals who perform
services similar to the services contemplated by this Agreement. All work will be
executed in the most workmanlike, safe and substantial manner and everything will
be furnished by Consultant that is necessary to complete and perfect the aforesaid
work according to the design and intention, whether particularly specified or not
which may be inferred from this Agreement and its specifications. Work which
should properly be performed by skilled laborers, will riot be attempted by common
laborers.
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The Consultant will ensure that all equipment and temporary offices and
trailers used on the job are conspicuously marked with both the name and
the telephone number of the Consultant. (if applicable).

The Consultant must clean up the work site each day. This clean-up must include
placing material, tools, and equipment in a neat, safe, and orderly arrangement.
Equipment must never block access to existing facilities. Rubbish, debris, rubble,
and garbage must be properly removed daily and disposed of by the Consultant in
accordance with all applicable local, state, and federal laws and regulations. The
City and its officers, agents, representatives, or employees are not responsible or
liable for, in any way whatsoever, for any hazardous condition created by, arising
out of, or incidental to the Security Guard Services performed by the Consultant or
its officers, employees, contractors, representatives, or agents under this
Agreement. (See Section 29 entitled “Insurance and Indemnification.”)

The Consultant will furnish, and have on the job at all times, sufficient equipment
to Properly, safely, and hygienically carry out the work under this Agreement
including such tools and/or equipment as may be necessary to meet emergency
requirements.

The Consultant will furnish to the Airport Representative a listing of all
Employees (including subcontractor’s employees) performing services under this
Agreement. The Consultant will maintain and update this listing throughout the
term of this Agreement. The Consultant will be present at the work site
continuously during working hours throughout the progress of the work, either in
person, or through his Project Coordinator or supervisory personnel to receive
directions or furnish information. Any instructions or directions given to the
Project Coordinator or supervisory personnel of the Consultant will be considered
the same as given to the Consultant in person.

Consultant, at its cost, will secure all applicable permits and licenses and
approvals required or necessary to fulfill the Provisions of this Agreement.

The Consultant will attend a pre-performance conference prior to the
commencement of any work under this Agreement. Said conference will be after
the date of Agreement execution, and prior to start of the work.

The work to be performed under this Agreement is on an active Airport.
Therefore, prior to the start of any work under this Agreement, the Consultant
will provide the Airport Representative with a work schedule which will
indicate a proposed sequence and time schedule of the work to be accomplished
for the Airport Representative’s prior written approval. (See Section 2, entitled
“Scope of Work™.)
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In case of an emergency, the Airport Representative will have authority to order
the Consultant to immediately terminate work and clear the area of personnel and
equipment. The Consultant will immediately comply to such an order with all
possible speed.

The Airport Representative will determine the amount, classifications,
acceptability, and fitness of all work to be done, and will decide all questions which
may arise relative to the proper performance of this Agreement, and his decisions
will be final, except as provided for in Section 15.

The City reserves the right to solicit bids and award contracts to other Consultants
for any modifications or additions to the Security Guards Services. The City
reserves the right to furnish components, parts, supplies, and materials at its
discretion or to perform the work under this Agreement. (See Sections 4.D. and
24.G).

9. RULES AND REGULATIONS

A.

The Consultant will comply with all applicable rules and regulations including,
resolutions, plans, operating directives, Airport Certification Manual (ACM), and
directives promulgated or established by the Airport Authority, the Airport
Commission, the Director, or the City, as amended in performing the work or
services contemplated herein or the Provisions of this Agreement. The Consultant
will comply with all statutes, laws, ordinances, orders, judgments, decrees,
permits, regulations, environmental plans and programs, environmental permits,
directions, and requirements of the City as amended in addition to those from
federal, state, city, local and other governmental authorities, now or hereafter
applicable, in performing the Provisions of this Agreement and the work or
services contemplated herein. Consultant shall comply with all federal, state, and
local laws pertaining to its employees and its subcontractors’ employees’ right to
join or form a union.

The Consultant will be responsible for compliance with all Airport Security
Regulations, Airport Security procedures, and TSA 1500 as amended. Any and all
violations by the Consultant or its officers, employees, subcontractors, independent
contractors, agents, or representatives pertaining to Airport Security resulting in a
fine or penalty to the City or the Consultant, or its officers, employees, agents, or
representatives, will be the responsibility of the Consultant. City will be reimbursed
within ten (10) days of the City’s request, for any such fines or penalties imposed on
the City. (See Section 21 entitled “Badging”.)

The Consultant will be responsible for the work of all subcontractors and agents,
and all work must be kept under the Consultant's control. A complete list of all
such subcontractors will be submitted to the Airport Representative for his/her prior
written approval (See Section 23).
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10.

D. The Consultant will not be entitled to any claim for damages or losses whatsoever
against the City or its officers, employees, agents, representatives, due to hindrance
or delay from any cause whatever in the progress of the work or any portion thereof
including without limitation, loss of profits, and actual, consequential, special, or
incidental damages.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CONSULTANT

In the performance of this Agreement, the Consultant shall:

A. Consultant will comply with all applicable rules and regulations including
ordinances, resolutions, plans, operating directives, environmental plans or
programs, Airport certification manual, CDC recommendations and best
practices and directives promulgated or established by the Airport Authority, the
Airport Commission, the Director, or the City, as they may be amended from time
to time, in performing the work or services contemplated herein or the Provisions
of this Agreement. Consultant will comply with all statutes, laws, ordinances,
orders, judgments, decrees, permits, regulations, environmental plans and
programs, environmental permits, directions, and requirements of the City and all
federal, state, city, local and other governmental authorities, as may be amended
from time to time, now or hereafter applicable, in performing the Provisions of
this Agreement and/or the work or services contemplated herein.

B. Carry out the services as described in Section 4.0, Scope of Work, as ordered,
requested, and directed in writing by the Manager.

C. Not subcontract, assign, or otherwise transfer any of the services or work
to be performed under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the
City. Failure to obtain prior written consent of the City will be deemed cause for
termination of this Agreement. (See Section 23.0, “Assignment &
Subcontracting™).

D. Be responsible for the employment and supervision of its own staff to carry out its
obligations under this Agreement and be responsible for the performance and
payment of professional services that it may hire subject to the Provisions of the
Agreement in addition to the Consultant’s regularly employed staff. (Section 23.0,
“Assignment and Subcontracting™).

E. The Consultant will be responsible for the professional quality, technical
accuracy, and coordination of information and materials utilized to implement the
services provided under this Agreement. The Consultant will, without any
additional compensation, correct or revise errors or deficiencies for which it is
responsible in the course of providing its services under this Agreement as
determined by the Manager.
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11.

12,

Treat all knowledge of the City’s intentions, operations or procedures, and
business as confidential and regulated under CFR 1520 Sensitive Security
Information, and at no time divulge such information without the prior
written consent of the Airport Director, unless otherwise required by a court
order or subpoena, a copy of which has been presented to the Airport
Director. Consultant shall timely inform the City of any such order or
subpoena prior to releasing said confidential information. If disclosure of said
confidential information is required by court order or subpoena, the
Consultant shall timely notify the City in writing at least five (5) business
days prior to disclosure so that the City may seek court intervention
concerning the potential disclosure of said confidential information.

Provide personal attention to and prompt services for all assignments. The
Consultant understands and agrees that the City does not waive any rights
or bases for any cause of action by the virtue of its review, approval,
acceptance, or payment of any services provided by the Consultant under
this Agreement.

Throughout the term of this Agreement, the Consultant will maintain all licenses,
certifications, and credentials necessary to perform the services contemplated
herein in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, and
regulations including, without limitation all applicable rules and regulations of
United States Department of Transportation (USDOT) as they may be amended
from time to time.

REPAIR OF DAMAGE

The Consultant will promptly report any property of the City or third parties damaged by
Consultant’s operations or employees. The Consultant will make no repairs or
replacements to City property without the prior written approval of the Airport Director.

NOTICE OF LOSS OR CLAIMS

A.

The Consultant will indemnify, defend, and save harmless the City, its officers,
employees, and agents from all suits or actions, or losses brought against or
suffered by the City, its officers, employees or agents, for or on account of any
injuries or damages received or sustained by any party or parties by or from the
Consultant, his employees, representative, or agents, in the performance of the work
herein specified, or in consequence of any negligence in guarding the same, or any
defective materials or equipment used, or by or on account of any act or omission
of the said Consultant.

The Consultant will indemnify, defend, and save harmless the City, its officers,
employees, representatives, and agents from the payment of any and all claims,
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demands, damages, or costs arising out of any infringement, or alleged
infringement of intellectual property rights including, without limitation, the use of
any patent or patented device, article, system, arrangement, material or process used
by the Consultant or its officers, employees, representative, or agent in the
execution of this Agreement.

C. The Consultant shall within seven (7) days of service or demand, provide written

notification to the Director of all suits or action or losses arising out of this
Agreement.

13. REPLACEMENT OF PERSONNEL

Consultant will promptly replace the manager or any employee working under this
Agreement if the Airport Director feels that such must be done for the good of the
services being rendered. The Airport Director’s decision will be final and binding.

14. PROHIBITED ACTS
A. Consultant will not do or permit to be done any act which:

1. Will invalidate or be in conflict with any insurance policies covering the
Airport or the City, or any part thereof, or upon the contents of any
building thereon;

2. Will increase rates of any insurance, extended coverage or rental insurance
on the Airport or the City, or any part thereof, or upon the contents of any
building thereon;

3. In the opinion of the Airport Representative, will constitute a hazardous
condition, so as to increase risks normally attendant upon the operations
enumerated in this Agreement;

4. Will constitute a nuisance in or on the Airport or which may result in
creation, commission, or maintenance or a nuisance in or on the Airport;
or ‘

5. May interfere with the effectiveness or accessibility of the drainage of any

sewage system, fire protection system, sprinkler system, alarm system, fire
hydrants and hoses if any, installed or located in or on the Airport.

B. If by reason of the Consultant’s failure to comply with the provisions of this
section, any fire insurance, extended coverage or rental insurance rate on the
Airport, or any part thereof, or upon the contents of any building thereon will be
at any time higher than it otherwise would be, then the Consultant will on

27



15.

16.

17.

18.

demand, pay the City the increase in the cost of insurance premiums paid or
payable by the Airport which was charged because of such violation by the
Consultant. For the purpose of this section, “Airport” includes all structures or
improvements located thereon.

RIGHT OF REVIEW

Consultant will have the right to take any decision or direction of the Airport
Representative to the Director for his/her review and decision. The decision of the
Director will be final and binding. All requests for review must be in writing and within
24 hours of the Airport Representative’s decision in dispute, and must set forth clearly
the cause for such request of review. No review will be allowed by the Director which
has not first been considered by the Airport Representative. (See Section 8.L.).

GOVERNING LAW AND FORUM SELECTION

This Agreement will be made and entered into in the State of Missouri, and Missouti law,
the City’s charter and ordinances, as they may be amended from time to time, will govern
and apply to this Agreement. Any cause of action, claim, suit, demand, or other case or
controversy arising from or related to this Agreement must be brought only in a federal or
state court in The City of St. Louis, Missouri. Consultant and the City hereby admit and
consent to the jurisdiction and venue of such courts. The Provisions of this section
survive the expiration or early termination of this Agreement.

WAIVERS OF LIEN

Upon completion of work contemplated herein, and if requested by the City, the
Consultant will submit within five (5) business days of the City’s request full waivers of
lien from every entity involved in the performance of this Agreement. Lien waivers must
be submitted on forms and executed in a manner acceptable to the Airport
Representative. Consultant will not permit any mechanics’ or materialmen’s liens or any
other lien or encumbrance to be attached or foreclosed upon the City’s property or any
part or parcel thereof, or on the improvements thereon, by reason of any work or labor
performed or materials furnished by any mechanic, materialman, Consultant, or any other
reason.

FACILITIES PROVIDED BY THE AIRPORT
A. City, subject to and in accordance with the Provisions of this Agreement, will

provide the right of ingress and egress to all areas herein specified in order for the
Consultant to perform the work and services contemplated herein.
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B.

City shall provide adequate parking for the Consultant’s employees.

19. PRECAUTIONARY MEASURES

A

Consultant will exercise every precaution to prevent injury to persons, damage to
property, and inconvenience to the City’s travelers, licensees, invitees, airlines
operating at the Airport, and other users of the Airport. Consultant will place
watchmen, erect barricades and railings, give warnings, display lights, signals, or
signs and exercise precautions against fire, or electrocution, and take other
precautions as may be necessary, proper, and desirable.

Consultant shall comply with Social Distancing guidelines in effect at such time
that are recommended by the CDC in coordination with the Airport
Representative.

Any job related task where social distancing is impractical shall be completed
with the appropriate level of PPE.

Consultant shall be responsible for developing and implementing plans and
procedures to prevent and mitigate the spread of COVID-19 or any other
infectious disease within their work area to the maximum extent practical, with
approval from the Airport Representative.

20. STORAGE AND STAGING AREA

A.

Location of storage and transfer area (“Transfer Area™) will be assigned by the
Airport Representative in writing (if applicable). If assigned, the Transfer Area
will be used for storage of the Consultant’s equipment and property, and will be
maintained by the Consultant at its cost and to the City’s standards as provided for
in this Agreement. Assignment of the Transfer Area will be based on availability
of space.

The Consultant will be responsible for the security of its equipment and will
maintain and improve the Transfer Area as directed by the Airport
Representative. The Consultant agrees that the City (including its officers,
employees, agents or representatives) is not responsible or liable for any
vandalism, theft, casualty, loss, or damages of any kind whatsoever to the
Consultant’s equipment, containers, compactors, parts, tools, or supplies, or other

personal property.
City, subject to and in accordance with the Provisions of this Agreement, will

provide the right of ingress and egress to all areas required in the performance of
the Consultant’s services.
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21.

BADGING

A.

All Consultant employees performing work under this Agreement must be issued,
and must maintain, an Airport ID Badge issued by Airport Badging Office. The
Airport will not escort Consultant or subcontractor employees.

The Consultant will comply with all applicable federal, state and local
governmental laws and regulations and Airport rules and regulations as
amended.

The Consultant at its cost will supply to and update as needed for the Airport
Badging Office, a list of the Consultant’s employees to be issued an Airport ID
Badge.

The Consultant will, when directed by the Airport Representative,

schedule its employees to be issued an Airport ID Badge and fingerprinted

for a criminal history check by the Airport Badging Office. The Consultant will
maintain at all times adequate control of said identification badges. All employees
issued identification badges will be required to attend the Security Identification
Display Area (SIDA) class, and any other security or ID Badge-related training
class required by the Airport.

The Airport will bear the cost of providing new and/or renewal badges for the
Consultant's employees working under this Agreement. This fee includes the cost
of the badge, mandatory Security Threat Assessment, enrollment in FBI Rap
Back, and the SIDA class. The cost for fingerprinting is a one-time fee of $40.00
and will be paid by the Consultant. Badges must be renewed every 12 months.
The cost for lost or damaged identification badges and any associated training will
be the sole responsibility of the Consultant. The replacement cost for a lost
badge is $75.00 for the first badge, $100.00 for the second badge, and

$175.00 for a third badge. No fourth badge will be issued. Rates for Airport ID
Badges are subject to change during the term of the Agreement.

Upon expiration or termination of Agreement or discontinuance of
employment of any of the Consultant or subcontractor employees working
under this Agreement, all Airport-issued keys and ID Badges shall be
immediately surrendered to the Airport Representative or Airport Security
Operations.

The Consultant will be responsible for compliance with all Airport Security
Regulations, Airport Security procedures, and 49 CFR Part 1542 as amended. Any
and all violations by the Consultant or its officers, employees, subcontractors,
agents, or representatives pertaining to Airport Security resulting in a fine or
penalty to the City or the Consultant, or its officers, employees, agents, or
representatives, will be the responsibility of the Consultant. The City will be
reimbursed within ten (10) days of the City’s request, for any such fines or
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22.

23.

penalties imposed on the City.” .

PERFORMANCE & PAYMENT BOND

A. At or prior to the execution of this Agreement, the Consultant will immediately
execute a Performance Bond and a Payment Bond each in the amount of One
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00) with surety satisfactory to the City
conditioned on the full and faithful performance of all Provisions of this Agreement
to be executed. Affirmation by the Surety Company to execute the Performance
Bonds and the Payment Bonds must be executed by Attorney—In-Fact for the
surety company before a licensed Notary Public. The Payment Bonds must
comply with the coverage requirements and conditions of Section 107.170 RSMo.
The City will allow submittal of one year renewable bonds to meet the requirements
of this Section 22. The Consultant will notify the City no later than thirty (30) days
prior to the termination, cancellation, or non-extension of the Performance Bonds or
Payment Bonds. If the Consultant’s Performance Bonds or Payment Bonds are
terminated, cancelled, not renewed or extended, the Consultant shall promptly
provide the City with a replacement bond(s) in full compliance with this Section 22.
Any sum or sums derived from said Performance or Payment Bonds will be used
for the completion of this Agreement and the payment of laborers and material
suppliets, as the case may be.

B. Copies of the Performance Bonds and the Payment Bonds, in a form acceptable to

the City, must be given to the Airport Representative for approval before the work
of this Agreement begins.

MISSOURI UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS LAW

As a condition precedent for the award of this Agreement and prior to performing any work
or services under this Agreement, the Consultant, shall, pursuant to the applicable provisions
of Sections 285.525 through 285.555 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri 2000, as amended
(the “Missouri Unauthorized Aliens Law”), by sworn affidavit and provision of
documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization
program with respect to the employees working in connection with this Agreement. The
Consultant shall also affirm in said affidavit that it does not knowingly employ any person
who is an unauthorized alien in connection with this Agreement pursuant to the Missouri
Unauthorized Aliens Law. A copy of an affidavit in a form acceptable to the City is attached
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A entitled “Affidavit”. Consultant’s failure to
comply at all times with the Missouri Unauthorized Aliens Law or the provisions of this
Agreement related to the Missouri Unauthorized Aliens Law may result in the termination
of this Agreement by the City and/or the City seeking other remedies available to the City at
law or in equity. In addition, the State of Missouri may impose penalties or remedies for
violations of the Missouri Unauthorized Aliens Law as set forth therein. The Consultant
shall promptly and timely deliver to the City a fully executed original of the Affidavit (see
Exhibit A) including any required documentation in accordance with the Missouri
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24.

Unauthorized Aliens Law prior to performing any work under this Agreement.

GENERAIL PROVISIONS

A.

The Consultant is, and at all times hereunder, will be and remain an
independent Consultant and nothing herein will be interpreted or construed to
mean that the Consultant or any of its employees or agents is an employee or
agent of the City.

The Consultant will coordinate the services performed under this Agreement with
the Airport Representative designated by the Manager.

This Agreement will be the entire agreement and no amendment or modification
will be made (except as expressly provided for herein) unless in writing and
signed by the parties hereto.

The City of St. Louis and the Consultant agree that this Agreement and all
contracts entered into under the Provisions of this Agreement will be
binding upon the parties hereto and their successors and permitted assigns.

A waiver by either party of the Provisions hereto to be performed, kept, or observed
by the other party will not be construed as or operate as, a waiver of any subsequent
default or breach of any of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this Agreement.
Any waiver by either party must be in writing and signed by the party waiving.

The Consultant will keep and maintain such records and reports as are necessary
for the City to determine compliance with the obligations of this Agreement.
Such records must be maintained by the Consultant for at least three (3) years
after the expiration or termination of this Agreement. The City reserves the right
to investigate, audit, and review, upon written request, such records and
documents, in order to determine compliance with this Agreement. (See Section
34 entitled “Right To Audit Clause™).

Consultant agrees that the City retains the right to receive bids and award
contracts on any modifications, deletions, or additions to the Security Guard
Services contemplated herein. In addition, the City retains the right to furnish
materials or supplies at its discretion, or perform for itself, any work contemplated
herein. (See Sections 8.M and 4.A).

No alderman, commissioner, director, board member, officer, employee or other
agent of the City will be personally liable under or in connection with the
Agreement.

Neither party will be deemed in violation of this Agreement, if it is prevented
from performing any of the obligations hereunder by reason of strikes, boycotts,
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labor disputes, embargoes, shortage of material, acts of God, acts of a public
enemy, acts of a superior governmental authority, riots, rebellion, or sabotage, or
any other circumstances for which it is not responsible and which is not within its
control. (Section 24K).

In the event any Provision herein contained is held to be invalid by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the invalidity of any such Provision will in no way affect
any other Provision, herein contained, provided the invalidity of such Provision
does not materially prejudice either party hereto in its respective rights and
obligations contained in the valid Provisions of this Agreement.

Time is of the essence in this Agreement. The parties agree that time will be of the
essence in the performance of each and every obligation and understanding of this
Agreement.

When the authorization, consent, approval, waiver, certification, determination, or
any other action (“Approval”) of other party is required under the terms of this
Agreement, such Approval must be in writing and signed by the party approving.
Whenever the Approval of the City or the Director is required, the Approval must be
from the Director or his/her authorized or designated representative. In taking such
actions, the Director shall act reasonably, and take into consideration the best interest
of the City, the Airport, and travel public. The City and Contractor agree that
extensions of time for performance may be made by the written mutual consent of
the Director, on behalf of the City, and Contractor or its designee. Whenever the
Approval of the City, or the Director, or Contractor is required herein, no such
Approval shall be unreasonably requested, conditioned, or withheld.

25. MINIMUM PREVAILING WAGE & FRINGE BENEFITS

A.

The Consultant shall pay to employees and subcontractor’s employees not

less than the prevailing hourly rate of wages and fringe benefits listed

below as determined by the United States Secretary of Labor, or his/her
authorized representative, in accordance with prevailing rates in the locality of the
Metropolitan St. Louis area pursuant to 41 U.S.C. 351 et seq., as amended except
for any person engaged in an executive, administrative or professional capacity.
This section is subject to and shall be in accordance with City Ordinance No
62124 as codified in Chapter 6.20 of the Revised Code of The City of St. Louis
1990 Annotated.

27101 - Guard I $13.98

The minimum prevailing fringe benefits which the Consultant must
provide to theabove classifications of employees is $4.54.
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Such fringe benefits include medical or hospital care, pensions on retirement or
death, compensation for injuries or illness resulting from occupational activity, or
insurance to provide any of the foregoing, unemployment benefits, life insurance,
disability and sickness insurance, accident insurance, vacation and holiday pay,
costs of apprenticeship or other similar programs and other bona fide fringe
benefits to be provided by the service contractor and not otherwise required by
federal, state or local law. The term "minimum prevailing fringe benefits" may
include any contributions of fringe benefits equivalent to the foregoing or
differential payments in cash.

Consultant shall keep full and accurate records identifying the names and
classification of every service employee employed by them in the performance of
this Agreement, together with an accurate record of the number of hours worked
by each employee and the actual wages and fringe benefits paid therefor. Said
records shall be open to inspection by the Comptroller of the City or his/her
authorized representative at any reasonable time and as often as may be necessary
and such records shallnot be destroyed or removed from their customary location
for the period of one (1) year following the completion of the work under this
Agreement.

26. MEDIA INQUIRIES / ADVERTISING

A.

If contacted by any media entity or other third party (“Media Entity”) about this
Agreement or the services or work performed by the Consultant under this
Agreement (“Airport Project”), the Consultant will refer the Media Entity to the
Airport’s Public Relations Manager. This includes, without limitation, trade
publications.

Consultant acknowledges and agrees that any printed articles, press releases, web
articles, social media communications or case studies about an Airport Project
must be approved in writing by the Airport’s Public Relations Manager prior to
being made public by the Consultant. Consultant will have no right to use the
trademarks, symbols, logos, trade names or the name of the City or the Airport,
either directly or indirectly, in connection with any production, promotional
service, publication or advertising without the prior written consent of the
Airport’s Public Relations Manager.

Consultant will treat all knowledge of the City’s intentions, operations or
procedures, and business as confidential and at no time divulge such information
without the prior written consent of the Director, unless otherwise required by a
court order or subpoena. Consultant will timely inform the City of any such order
or subpoena prior to releasing said confidential information.

Advertisements discussing an Airport Project must be approved by the Airport’s
Public Relations Manager in writing prior to publication or must include a
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217.

28.

prominent disclaimer that neither the City nor the Airport necessarily endorses the
Consultant’s work.

Any quotes or testimonials from City or Airport staff may not be used unless pre-
approved in writing by the Airport’s Public Relations Manager.

Photos taken by Consultant of Airport Projects must be pre-approved in writing
by the Airport’s Public Relations Manager. Consultant acknowledges and
understands that some photos may contain security-sensitive information and
publication may violate federal laws or regulations or Airport security rules or
procedures.

The Airport’s Public Relations office must be given at least three (3) business.
days’ notice to review request and materials. The Airport’s Public Relations office
coordinates media, web, postings, printed materials, advertisements and other
public communication about Airport Projects. Public Relations main number is:
314-426-8125.

CUSTOMER SERVICE

Consultant, on behalf of itself and all subcontractors, acknowledges that customer service
to the traveling public is a primary concern for the City and that customer service is the
shared responsibility of all employees at the Airport, no matter their role or function.
Consultant agrees that all employees performing service pursuant to this Agreement shall:

A. Demonstrate excellent customer service at all times to every user of the
Airport, as applicable.

B. Actin a courteous and helpful manner at all times with travelers, fellow employees,
and all other users of the Airport.

C. Behave in a businesslike and professional manner while on Airport property.

D. Refrain from using foul or inappropriate language in public areas; smile and use a
pleasant tone of voice when conversing with travelers and all other Airport users;
be actively working while on duty.

INSPECTIONS

A. The Airport Representative will at all times have free access to the work, as well

as the equipment, and shops of the Consultant for the purpose of determining
Consultant’s compliance with the Provisions of this Agreement. The Airport
Representative may perform periodic inspections of the work as outlined in the
Agreement, to determine that services performed by the Consultant meet with
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required standards and the Consultant will be required to timely and promptly
make any improvements as required by the Airport Representative at no
additional charge to the City (See Sections 2 & 8).

29. INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION

A.

The Consultant, at its expense, at all times during the term hereof, will cause St.
Louis County, the City, and its Board of Alderman and the Airport Commission,
and their respective officers, employees, and agents and the Consultant to be
insured on an occurrence basis against all claims and demands by third persons
for bodily injury (including wrongful death) and property damage arising or
alleged to arise out of the activities or omissions of the Consultant, its officers,
agents, employees, Consultants, subcontractors, licensees, invitees,
representatives, and independent Consultants pursuant to this Agreement under
the following types of coverage:

1. Comprehensive General Liability;

2. Comprehensive Automobile Liability (any vehicles, including owned,
hired and non-owned).

The minimum limits of coverage for the above classes of insurance must
equal a single limit of Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000.00) comprised of such
primary and excess policies of insurance as the Consultant finds it feasible to
purchase during the term of this Agreement and will name St. Louis County,
the City, and its Board of Alderman and the Airport Commission, and their
respective officers, employees, and agents (the “CITY” as used in this Section)
by endorsement as an "Additional Insured". Prior to execution of this Agreement,
Consultant will provide certificates of said insurance and all endorsements
required pursuant to this Agreement to the Airport Representative in form and
content satisfactory to the City. In addition, the Consultant will also mail or fax a
copy of the Certificate of Insurance and all required endorsements to:

Airport Security Operations Division
P.O. Box 10212, Lambert Station
St. Louis, Missouri 63145
Attn: Sharon Wilson
Phone: 314-426-8002
Fax: 314-890-1325

Such liability insurance coverage must also extend to damage, destruction and
injury to CITY owned or leased property and CITY personnel, and caused by or
resulting from work, acts, operations, or omissions of Consultant, its officers,
agents, employees, Consultants, subcontractors, licensees, invitees,
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representatives, and independent Consultants and, contractual liability insurance
sufficient to cover Consultant’s indemnity obligations hereunder. The CITY will
have no liability for any premiums charged for such coverage, and the inclusion
of the CITY as an Additional Insured is not intended to, and does not make the
CITY apartner or joint venturer with Consultant in its operations hereunder.
Each such insurance policy must, by endorsement, provide primary coverage to
the CITY when any policy issued to the CITY provides duplicate or similar
coverage and in such circumstances, the CITY s policy will be excess over
Consultant’s policy.

D. The Consultant will protect, defend, and hold St. Louis County, the City, and its
Board of Alderman and the Airport Commission, and their respective officers,
employees, and agents completely harmless from and against all liabilities, losses,
suits, claims, judgments, and fines or demands arising by reason of injury or death
of any person or damage to any property, including all reasonable costs for
investigation and defense thereof (including but not limited to attorneys’ fees,
court costs, and expert fees), of any nature whatsoever arising out of or incident to
this Agreement and the use or occupancy of the City’s premises and the acts or
omissions of Consultant's officers, agents, employees, Consultants,
subcontractors, licensees, invitees, or independent Consultants regardless of
where the injury, death, or damage may occur, unless and to the extent such
injury, death or damage is caused by the negligence of the City. The Director or
his/her designee will give to Consultant reasonable notice of any such claims or
actions. The Consultant will also use counsel reasonably acceptable to the City
Counselor of the City or his/her designee, after consultation with the Director or
his/her designee, in carrying out its obligations hereunder. The Provisions of this
section survive the expiration or early termination of this Agreement.

E. The Consultant will maintain Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability
Insurance at least at the statutory requirement and in accordance with Missouri
laws and regulations. Consultant will require that all of its subcontractors or
licensees similarly provide such coverage. The City, its officers, employees, or
agents will not be liable or responsible for any claims or actions occasioned by
Consultant’s failure to comply with the Provisions of this subsection, The
indemnification Provisions of this Agreement apply to this subsection. It is
expressly agreed that the employees of the Consultant are not employees of the
City for any purpose, and that employees of the City are not employees of the
Consultant.

30. CANCELLATION
A, The City retains the right to cancel this Agreement immediately upon written

notice to Consultant, if:
L. Consultant fails to properly keep any Provision of this Agreement; or,
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31.

2. The quality of service falls below the specified standards as determined by
the City; or,

3. Consultant fails or refuses to render the amount of service required.
Consultant has the right to cancel this Agreement if:

i, The City fails to keep, perform, or observe any material Provision of this
Agreement for a period of ninety (90) days after written notice by Consultant
specifying the material breach by the City;

a. Failure to keep, perform, or observe any material Provision of this
Agreement will not give rise to Consultant’s right to terminate this
Agreement if the material breach can be cured but cannot, with due
diligence, be cured within ninety (90) days, if the City institutes
corrective action within ninety (90) days and diligently pursued until
the material breach is corrected.

Consultant retains the right to cancel this Agreement without cause upon one
hundred twenty (120) days’ written notice to the City. There will be no liability to
Consultant and such a cancellation will be a no-fault cancellation.

The City retains the right to cancel this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30)
days® written notice to Consultant. There will be no liability to the City and such
a cancellation will be a no-fault cancellation.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, it is expressly understood by the parties
that this Agreement will terminate immediately upon the failure of budgetary
appropriations with no resulting Hability to the City.

Upon cancellation, termination, or the expiration of this Agreement, or if
requested in writing by the Airport Representative, all tools, parts, equipment,
supplies, materials, maps, plans and specifications, manuals, schedules, records,
files, logs, work product, or property paid for, supplied or owned by the City will
be returned to the City by Consultant within one (1) business day.

ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING

A.

Consultant will not assign or transfer this Agreement without the prior written
approval of the City, as provided for in Ordinance 63687 approved in 1996, At
least ninety (90) days prior to any contemplated assignment of this Agreement,
Consultant will submit a written request to the City along with a copy of the
proposed assignment agreement. The City reserves the right to refuse without
cause or justification, such requests. No assignment will be made or will be
effective unless Consultant is not in default on any of the other Provisions of this
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Agreement. The party to whom such assignment is made will expressly assume
in writing the Provisions of this Agreement. The parties to this Agreement
understand and agree that the Consultant is and will remain responsible for the
performance of its assigns under this Agreement unless otherwise agreed to in
writing by the City. No assignment will be effective as it pertains to the City until
such time as the City receives a fully executed copy of the approved assignment
agreement as provided for above.

B. Consultant will not subcontract or transfer any part of the services or work to be
performed hereunder without the prior written approval of the Director of Airports.
At least sixty (60) days prior to any contemplated subcontracting of service or work
or the transfer of any part of the services or work to be performed hereunder,
Consultant will submit a written request to the Director of Airports. This request
must include a copy of the proposed subcontract or agreement. The City reserves the
right to refuse without cause or justification, such requests. At a minimum, any sub-
confractor agreement must expressly require strict compliance with the Provisions of
this Agreement. The Consultant will furnish all authorized subcontractors or agents
a copy of this Agreement. The parties understand and agree that the Consultant is
responsible for the performance of its subcontractors or agents under this
Agreement. No subcontract or any other agreement will be effective as it pertains to
the City until such time as the City receives a fully executed copy of the approved
subcontract or agreement as provided for above.

C. Any such assignment or transfer or subcontracting of services without the consent
of the City, as provided for above, will constitute default on the part of the
Consultant under this Agreement. No action or failure to act on the part of any
officer, agent, or employee of the City will constitute a waiver by the City of this
provision.

D. Notwithstanding any other term or provision in this Agreement, the City may
assign this Agreement at its sole discretion by providing Notice to Consultant as
described above.

E. The City has approved the following M/W/DBE subcontractors for participation
under this Agreement at the percentage participation goals as set out below:

A-1 Private Investigations, LL.C MBE 25%
Protective Services Group, Inc. WBE 5%

32. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION PROGRAM AND NON-DISCRIMINATION

A. Consultant agrees during performance under this Agreement, that discrimination
will not be permitted against any employee, worker, or applicant for employment
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because of race, creed, color, religion, sex, age, disability, national ancestry or
origin.

Consultant agrees during performance under this Agreement, that all printed or
circulated solicitations, or other advertisement or publication for employees placed
by or on behalf of the Consultant, state that all qualified applicants will receive
meaningful consideration for employment without regard to race, creed, color,
religion, sex, age, disability, national origin or ancestry.

Consultant agrees during performance under this Agreement, that should it be
determined by the Consultant or City that Consultant will be unable to conform to
the approved positive employment program, submitted to determine eligibility
under the Fair Employment Division Practices Provisions of the City Code, will
notify the Fair Employment Division of the St. Louis Council on Human
Relations within ten days as to the steps to be taken by the Consultant to achieve
the provisions of this program.

Consultant will permit reasonable access by the City to such persons, reports and
records as are necessary for the purpose of ascertaining compliance with fair
employment practices.

In the event of the Consultant's non-compliance with the nondiscrimination
clauses of this Agreement, or to furnish information or permit records and
accounts to be inspected, within twenty (20) days from the date requested, this
Agreement may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or part and
Consultant may be declared ineligible for further City contracts for a period of
one (1) year, by the option of the City; provided further in the event the contract is
canceled, terminated, or suspended for failure to comply with fair employment
practices, the Consultant will have no claim for any damages against the City.

Consultant further agrees that these clauses (A through E) on discrimination and
equal opportunity practices in all matters of employment and training for
employment will be incorporated by Consultant in all contracts or agreements
entered into with suppliers of materials or services, Consultants and
subcontractors and all labor organizations furnishing skilled, unskilled and craft
union skilled labor, or who may perform any such labor or services in connection
with this Agreement.

Whenever the Consultant is sued or threatened with litigation by a subcontractor,
vendor, individual, group or association, as a result of compliance with the
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